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On behalf of Karoon Gas Australia Ltd (“Karoon”] and the
Board of Directors, | take great pleasure in presenting to you
the annual report for the year ending 30 June 2006.

In May 2006 after completing geological and geophysical
studies Karoon deemed the WA-314-P and WA-315-P
assets to be of high enough potential and low enough risk to
take full equity in the WA-314-P and WA-315-P areas.

Karoon has commenced interpretation of seismic data

from the first two seismic surveys over WA-314-P and
WA-315-P permits and expects the final 3D seismic data to
be ready for interpretation early in the 4 quarter of 2006.
Karoon has estimated risked resources potential on WA-
315-P and WA-314-P of 15-30 Trillion Cubic Feet (tcf] of
gas and 300 million barrels (mmbl] of condensate.

CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

The Karoon Board and management are committed to
following the company policy of securing high quality
hydrocarbon exploration areas with the right partner. The
Board believes Karoon's Browse Basin permits, are in the
right place with the giant gas fields of Brecknock Scott Reef
located just south of WA-315-P and WA-314-P . Timing

is excellent with current high hydrocarbon prices creating a
favourable climate for exploration companies such as Karoon.
Finding the final ingredient, the right partner, is becoming
very promising with several potential Joint Venture partners
currently completing due diligence.

In addition, the completion of a second 2D seismic survey
over our Gippsland Basin acreage has greatly improved the
outlook on Karoon’s oil prospects in PEP 162. Analysis of
the data is continuing with a driling campaign planned for
late 2006. Karoon has been encouraged by the recent
seismic results, which have enabled Karoon to further define
and upgrade older leads and identify new leads for further
exploration.

The combination of exploration results and joint venture
prospects has set the stage for a very exciting 2006/2007
in what Karoon believes will be another productive year for
the oil and gas sector. The coming year provides great
opportunities for Karoon shareholders and the Board would
like to thank you for your continued support.

Robert Hosking

Executive Chairman

Karoon Gas Australia Ltd




BROWSE BASIN

DnoWse

Pursuant to the Liberty Farm-in Agreement, Karoon farmed
into the Browse Basin Permits held by Liberty Petroleum in
exchange for aroyalty. The permits are 300 kilometres offshore,
northwest of Broome and Derby in \WWestern Australia. Karoon
has acquired a 100 percent interest in WA-314-P and WA-
315-P by fulfilling the Year 2 minimum guaranteed work program
of a 400-square kilometre seismic survey in each permit.

The directors believe that these permits offer potential for
gas and condensate that on success will offer a resource
size sufficient to support a Liquefied Natural Gas [LNG)]
development (an approximate minimum economic quantity is
4 TCF of gas]). Karoon has mapped seven leads, with risked
reserves potential totals estimated to be approximately
15-30 TCF with 300 milion barrels of condensate.

An independent report on the gas and condensate potential of
the Browse Basin acreage and the oil potential of the Gippsland
Acreage has been prepared by a geological consultant engaged
by Karoon and was presented in the May 2005 Prospectus.

n Karoon Gas Australia Ltd

GIPPSLAND BASIN

— Boundaries

WA-314-P/WA-315-P Boundaries
[ | Gas
[ | ail

SUMMARY OF ASSETS




\I_I

Karoon (through its 100 percent-owned subsidiary Karoon Gas
Pty Ltd) has a 100 percent registered interest in PEP162
and EL4537, within the Western on-shore Gippsland Basin
of Victoria. The area of PEP162 is extensive, covering some
2950 square kilometres and overlays EL4537, which covers
612 square kilometres. The permits are 100 kilometres east
of Melbourne, and are close to existing oil and gas pipelines
moving oil and gas from Bass Strait to the Melbourne area.

On December 17 2005, Megascolides-1 was drilled on the
Northern Terrace of the Narracan Trough. This was the first
deep well to be drilled in the Narracan Trough. Results were
favourable with confirmation of the presence of gas-bearing
black coals. A total of 15 metres of black coal, occurring
as interbeds less than 1-metre thick, with a gas content of
100 standard cubic feet [scf] per ton and approximate gas
saturation of 30 percent was penetrated. This well also
identified a potential oil play, with the presence of a 3 to 5-
metre section of net porous sands showing good fluorescence
and high mud gas readings. Analysis of the extracted oil showed
that a waxy crude oil was present. Petrophysical interpretation
indicates up to 60 percent saturation is present in the reservoir
with a porosity range between 12 percent and 15 percent.

With the presence of gas-bearing black coal across the
Narracan Trough and the discovery of a potential oil play, further
follow-up work was planned for the permits. Exploration works
now completed include a 250-kilometre seismic program to be
followed by a three well exploration program in the fourth quarter
of 2006 including a re-entry and sidetrack of Megascolides-1

SUMMARY OF ASSETS
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The Directors present their report together
with the Financial Report of Karoon Gas
Australia Ltd [“Karoon”) and subsidiaries
for the financial year ended 30 June 2006
and the auditors’ report thereon.

The Directors of Karoon at any time during
or since the end of the financial year are:

Mr Robert Michael Hosking

Managing Director & Chairman
Appointed 11 November 2003

Robert is the founding Director of Karoon
and has more than 30 years of commercial
experience in the administration of several
companies. Robert has been involved in
the oil and gas industry for nine years and
was the founding Director/Shareholder of
both Karoon and Nexus Energy. Robert
was responsible for procuring PEP 162 and
EL 4537 and managing all of the required
work programs in relation to those permits,
including raising funds and overseeing the
geophysical and geological contractors.

Aerial Photograph of Gippsland Region

Robert also has a background of more than
15 years’ commercial experience in the steel
industry. He jointly owned and managed
businesses involved in the transglobal
sourcing, shipping and distribution of steel-
related products, with particular expertise
gained in Europe and the Asia/Pacific Rim.

Member of the audit committee.

n Karoon Gas Australia Ltd

Mr Geoff Atkins
FIE Aust. RMIT Dip. Civ Eng.

Non-Executive Director
Appointed 22 February 2005

Geoff has over 34 years' experience
in investigation, planning, design,
documentation and project management
of numerous significant port, harbour and
maritime  projects, including container
terminals, LNG jetties, cement, coal,
bauxite, iron ore and other bulk terminals
and naval bases. Geoff has gained substantial
overseas experience completing marine
projects in Indonesia, Malaysia, Thailand,
Vietnam, Sri Lanka, India, South Africa,
Namibia, New Zealand and the United
Kingdom. LNG, oil, gas, bulk ports and other
large maritime infrastructure projects have
included the design of Woodside’'s LNG
Jetty, tender design of Darwin LNG Jetty
and investigations of proposed LNG marine
terminals in Taiwan, Iran and Israel for BHP
Petroleum and the West Kingfish and Cobia
oil driling platforms for ESSO/BHP in Bass
Strait.

Chairman of the Audit Committee

DIRECTORS




Mr Mark Alexander Smith
Dip. App. Geol, Bsc. [Geology]

Executive Director and Exploration
manager

Appointed 1 December 2003.

Mark has over 25 vyears continuous
experience as a geologist and exploration
manager in petroleum exploration and
development in Australia, Southeast Asia and
North America. The bulk of this experience
was gained while with BHP Petroleum.
Mark has been directly involved with seven
economic oil and gas discoveries.

Mark has geoscience skills in regional basin
and tectonic studies, acreage evaluations
and gazettal. His skills also include farm-
ins/farm-outs, petroleum systems fairway
assessments, prospect evaluations, risking
and volumetric and fault seal prediction.
Mark has project and management
experience in well site operations and also
management of onshore and offshore
driling operations.

DIRECTORS

Mr Stephen Power
B. Juris LLB

Non-Executive Director
Appointed 28 June 2005

Stephen Power is a commercial lawyer who
has spent approximately 20 years providing
advice to participants in the resources
industry in Australia and overseas.
Stephen is a partner in a boutique law firm
that provides commercial advice to its
predominantly listed client base. Stephen
has extensive experience in all facets of
commercial and resources law, including
the oil and gas sector, both in an Australian
and International context. Stephen
regularly advises on farm-in arrangements,
joint ventures, production agreements
and other facets of resources-related
commercial transactions. In addition to
Stephen’s experience in the resources
area, Stephen has a significant practice
advising on capital raisings, including the
drafting of prospectuses, underwritings
and related work, listing advice and the
planning and implementation of mergers and
acquisitions.

Karoon Gas Australia Ltd

Mr Scott Hosking

B. Commerce

Company Secretary

Appointed 10th March 2006

Scott was appointed company secretary in
2006.

Mr Hector Peeters resigned as Company
Secretary 10 March 2006




Directors’ Meetings

The number of Directors’ meetings (including meetings of committees of Directors) and number of meetings attended by each of the Direc-

tors of the Company during the financial year were:

Year Ending Board Board Audit Audit

31st June Meetings  Meetings &Oergtr;::;t:zel i, &Oerg;:;tseitten i
2006 Held a Attended b

Robert Hosking B 6 3 3

Mark Smith 6 6 - -

Geoff Atkins 6 6 3 1

Stephen Power 6 5 - -

a Number of meetings held during the time the Director held office during financial year

b Meetings attended whilst a member

Review of Operations

Gippsland Basin

Karoon Gas (through its 100% owned subsidiary Karoon Gas Pty Ltd])
has a 100% registered interest in PEP162 and EL4537, located
within the Western on-shore Gippsland Basin of Victoria.

The 250 km West Gippsland 2D seismic survey in PEP162 and
EL4537 has been processed and prospect and lead mapping is pro-
gressing. The seismic program was designed to map the extent of the
updip Megascolides-1 structure (Drilled by Karoon in November 2004)
and to define new structures at the oil bearing Top Crayfish Group
equivalent level. The seismic was also designed to map the extent
and quality of CBM black coals across the EL4537 license to locate
optimal drilling targets.

A driling program is being planned, and Century Driling will be con-
tracted to complete the driling of two prospects starting late in the
4th quarter of 2006.

Browse Basin

Principal Activities

The principal activities of Karoon during the course of the financial year
were the investment in oil exploration in the Western Gippsland Basin
permit PEP 162 in Victoria’'s south-east and the acquisition and explo-
ration of permits WA-314-P and WA-315-P in the Browse Basin.

There were no other significant changes in the nature of the activities
of Karoon during the financial year other than disclosed in the Financial
Report.

Karoon Gas is a 100% interest holder in oil and gas exploration per-
mits WA-314-P and WA-315-P in the offshore Browse Basin located
in North-Western Australia. Karoon has earned 100% equity in the
WA-314-P and WA-315-P permits by fulfiling the minimum Year-2
commitments which consists of 400 square km. of 3D seismic in
each permit.

Interpretation of the first 3D seismic survey has commenced, with re-
sults expected during the 3rd quarter 2006. The 845km 2D seismic
survey data is in the final stages of processing.

The final phase of seismic acquisition covers 286 sq km over eastern
WA-315-P and was completed during the 1st week of August 2006.
Data processing and interpretation should be completed in the 4th
quarter 2006. This seismic survey will fulfil Karoon’s year 2 work pro-
gram commitments on the WA-314-P and WA-315-P permits.

Karoon is currently seeking to farm out equity in the WA-314-P and
WA-315-P permits. Karoon is moving forward with potential farm-
inees with results expected in the near future. Karoon will continue to
employ its best efforts to generate a successful Joint Venture so as
to further develop the WA-314-P and WA-315-P permits in the most
timely and cost efficient manner.

Any Joint Venture Agreements reached will be announced to the ASX
at the appropriate time.

Karoon Gas Australia Ltd

DIRECTORS REPORT




Likely Developments

Karoon will continue to pursue its farm out activities with a view to
drilling in WA-314-P and WA-315-P in the first quarter of 2007. The
consolidated entity’s long-term objective is to achieve growth from
exploration and development opportunities.

Karoon will be pursuing its strategy to gain access to quality assets
with significant equity levels.

Further information about likely developments in the operations of Ka-
roon and the expected results of those operations in future financial
years has not been included in this report because disclosure of the
information would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to Ka-
roon.

New ventures

Karoon conducted preliminary due diigence on a number of hydro-
carbon assets and is continuing with investigations at balance date.
Any projects that are taken up will be announced to the ASX at the
appropriate time.

Operating Results

The consolidated loss of the Group for the financial year ended 30
June 2006 was $2,835,982 (2005: loss $865,366).

Financial Position

During the financial year Karoon has successfully completed $18.25
million in new capital raisings:

° $4.3 million in exercise of various options
° $13.95 million placed with sophisticated and institutional
investors

Significant Changes in State of Affairs

During August 2005, 7.75 million shares were placed at 180 cents
each that raised $13.95 million.

Between July 2005 and June 2006, 19.33 million listed options were
exercised at 20 cents each that raised $3.87 million.

Between July 2005 and June 2006, 345,000 unlisted Direc-
tor and employee options were exercised at 125 cents that raised
$431,250.

During October 2005 British Gas withdrew from the farm-out agree-
ment with Karoon Gas over the WA-314-P and WA-315-P permits.
Karoon decided to move through the second year work commitments
alone while attempting to find a more suitable farm out partner.

On April 13th 2006 pursuant to the Liberty Farm-in Agreement, Ka-
roon acquired 100% equity in WWA-314-P and WA-315-P from Liberty
Petroleum.

In November 2005 Karoon successfully completed a 250 km 2D
seismic survey over the PEP-162 permits in the on-shore Gippsland
Basin.

During January 2006 a 845 sq km 3D seismic survey was completed
over the WA-314-P and WA-315-P permits.

During March 2006 a 850km 2D seismic survey was completed over
the WA-314-P and WA-315-P permits.

Hunt Rig/ Megascolidies-1 Site

DIRECTORS REPORT
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Dividends

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company to members
since the end of the previous financial year.

Remuneration Report

This section of the Directors’ Report is prepared in accordance with
Section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. \Where appropriate,
information which is included in other parts of the Financial Report is
included in this report by reference.

Remuneration policy

The Board regularly reviews remuneration of its senior executives and
Directors. This also includes responsibility for the Employee Share
Option scheme. The executive remuneration structure is based on a
number of factors, including length of service, particular experience
of the individual concerned and overall performance of Karoon, it also
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay, reflecting short
and long-term performance objectives appropriate to Karoon's cir-
cumstances and objectives. A proportion of executive remuneration
is structured in a manner designed to link rewards to corporate and
individual performance. This is done by considering the following remu-
neration components:

¢ Fixed remuneration; and
e Equity-based remuneration within thresholds set by the
Board.

The contracts for service between Karoon and specified executives are
on a continuing basis the terms of which are not expected to change in
the immediate future. Upon retirement specified executives are paid
employee benefit entitlements accrued to date of retirement.

Options are also issued under the Executive and Employee Share
Option scheme. Non-executive Directors do not receive any perfor-
mance-related remuneration. Options are valued under the Black and
Scholes option pricing model.

The Directors and executives receive a superannuation guarantee con-
tribution as required by the Federal Government, which is currently
9% and do not receive any other retirement benefits. Individuals,
however, may chose to sacrifice part of their salary to increase pay-
ments towards superannuation.




Details of existing contracts between Karoon and the executive administration are as follows;

Incentive Option

Name Term Expiry Notice/Termination Eligible Remuneration amounts
Mr Robert Hosking 3 years, 3 year option 06/10/2008 In writing 8 months Yes $250,000
Mr Mark Smith 3 years, 3 year option 06/10/2008 In writing 8 months Yes $250,000
Mr Scott Hosking 2 years, 1 year option 01/01/2008 In writing 8 months Yes $105,000

Details of remuneration for the financial year ended 30 June 2006

This section of the Remuneration Report provides specific disclosures in relation to remuneration for the Managing Director (as an Executive
Director], Mr Robert Hosking, and for the senior executives in Karoon with the greatest authority for strategic direction and management of Karoon.
In this report these executives are referred to as “Specified Executives”.

The remuneration for each Director and each of the Specified Executives during the financial year was as follows:

Salary, fees & Superannuation Cash Post Employment Equity Others Total
Commissions Contributions Bonus Superannuation Options
$ 5 $ $ 5 $ $
2005
Mr Robert Hosking 250,000 - - - 715,200 - 965,200
Mr Mark Smith 250,000 - - - 715,200 - 965,200
Mr Geoff Atkin 25,000 2,750 - - 206,700 - 233,950
Mr Stephen Power 25,000 2,250 - - 163,900 - 191,150
550,000 5,000 - - 1,801,000 - 2,355.500
Specified Executives
Mr Scott Hosking 75,625 6,806 - - 14,490 - 76,625

Total 625,625 11,808 - - 1,815,590 . 2,432,125




seringapatam reef north west shelf




At 30 June 2008, nil options (30 June 2005: $415,000 options) were outstanding as part of the Karoon Gas Employee Share Option Plan.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2006 the following ordinary shares were issued on the exercise of options granted under the Karoon
Gas Employee Share Option Plan. No further shares have been issued since that date. No amounts are unpaid on any of the shares.

Grant Date Exercise Price Number Issued
09/05/06 125 cents 100,000
06/06/06 125 cents 40,000
20/06/06 125 cents 50.000
30/06/06 125 cents 155,000

345,000

In addition, at 30 June 2006 70,000 options with an exercise price of 125 cents each, expired and were not paid up.

Directors’ Interests

Ordinary fully paid Options Over Ordinary

shares Shares
Mr Robert Hosking 12,311,087 2,750,000
Mr Mark Smith 1,830,000 2,750,000
Mr Geoff Atkins 227,500 500,000
Mr Stephen Power 15,000 500,000

The relevant interest of each Director in the shares, debentures, interests in registered schemes and rights or options over such instruments
issued by Karoon, as notified by the Directors to ASX in accordance with Section 205G(1] of the Corporations Act 2001, at the date of this
report is as follows:

Indemnification of Directors
and Officers

An indemnity agreement has been entered into between an insurance company and the current Directors of Karoon named earlier in this Di-
rectors’ Report and with the full time executive officers, directors and secretaries of all Australian group companies. Under this agreement,
the insurance company has agreed to indemnify these Directors and officers against any claim or for any expenses or costs which may arise
as a result of work performed in their respective capacities. The contract of insurance prohibits disclosure of the nature of the liability and the
amount of the premium.

Proceedings on Behalf of Company

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of Karoon or to intervene in any proceedings to which Karoon is a party
for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or part of those proceedings.

Karoon was not a party to any such proceeding during the financial year.

DIRECTORS REPORT Karoon Gas Australia Ltd




Corporate Governance

In recognising the need for the highest standards of corporate
governance and accountability, the Directors of Karoon support and
have adhered to the principles of good corporate governance. The
Statement of Corporate Governance Principles for Karoon Gas is
listed on pages 46 - 49 of this Annual Report.

Environmental Regulation

The consolidated entity is subject to a range of environmental laws and
regulations with the most signified being:

e The Petroleum (submerged lands) Act 1967

e The Petroleum Act 1998 (Vic) and the Petroleum Regulations 2000
(Vic);

e Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999

e Mineral Resources Development Act 1990 (Vic)

e The Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Heritage and Protection
Act 1994 (Cth)

e The Archaeological and Aboriginal relics Preservation Act 1972
[Vic)

The Board believes that Karoon has adequate systems in place for
managing its environmental requirements and is not aware of any
breach of those environmental requirements as they apply to Karoon.
No circumstances arose during the year that resulted in an incident to
be reported under environmental legislation.

Adoption of Australian Equivalents
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“AIFRS™)

The Financial Report has been prepared under Australian equivalents
to International Financial Reporting Standards. A reconciliation of
adjustments arising on the transition to AIFRS, between previous
Australian GAAP and Australian equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards, has been included in Note 25 of the Financial
Report.

Statutory Auditors

Mitchell Wilson and Partners continues to act in its capacity as the
statutory auditor of Karoon Gas Australia Ltd in accordance with
Section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001.

Karoon Gas Australia Ltd

Auditor’s Independence Declaration

Auditor’s Independence Declaration

No officer of Karoon has previously belonged to an audit practice
auditing Karoon during the financial year.

The Directors have considered the position and, in accordance with
advice received from the Audit Committee, are satisfied that the
provision of these services is compatible with the standards of auditor
independence imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The services
were subject to terms and conditions of engagement to ensure that
auditor independence was not compromised.

A copy of the auditors’ independence declaration for the financial year
ended 30 June 2006 has been received as required under Section
207C of the Corporations Act 2001 is included on page 45.

This Directors’ Report is made in accordance with a resolution of
the Board of Directors made pursuant to Section 288(2) of the
Corporations Act 2001.

On behalf of the Directors:

Mr Robert Hosking
Managing Director

Dated Melbourne this 15th day of September 2006

Auditor’s Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the
Corporations Act 2001 to the directors of Karoon Gas Australia
Limited

| declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief during the year
ended 30 June 2006 there have been:

i. No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as
set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit, and

i. No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in
relation to the audit.

Doug Mitchell
Partner
16th Day of Septe

DIRECTORS REPORT
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2006

Consolidated Entity

Parent Entity

2006 2005 2006 2005

Note $ 8 3 3
Revenues from ordinary activities 2 931,762 157,976 1,002,147 157,056
Net foreign currency gains 77,459 - 77,459 -
Accounting & Taxation Fees (19,460) (19,927) (19,460) (19,927)
Audit fees 4 (5,500) (15,000]) [2,455) (12,000])
Bank charges (104,219] (2,487) (103,222) [2,487)
Computer support (24,783) (8,994) (24,783) (8,994)
Consulting fees (295,006] (191,696) (295,006]) (191,696)
Corporate promotion and annual report (48,192) (15,285) (48,192) (15,285)
Depreciation and Amortization Expense (123,710) (210,019) (123,710) (48,099])
Directors’ Fees and Superannuation (54,500] (30,479) (54,500] (30,479)
Exploration and evaluation expenditure expensed or written off (78,230]) - - -
Legal fees (65.601) (108,468) (65.601) (108,468)
Insurance (95,322) (4,984) (95,322) (4,984)
Other expenses from ordinary activities (109,003] (63,474) (109,003) (62,028)
Property costs (73,060) (76,166) (72,960) (76,066)
Employee Benefits Expense (net) (2,530,923) (144,337) (2,603,547) (144,337)
Share registry and listing fees (91,396) (59,797) (91,020] (59,797)
Travel and accommodation (126,299) (71,229) (126,299) (71,229)
Loss from ordinary activities before income tax expense (2,835,982] (865,366) (2,755,474) (699,820]
Income tax [expense)/benefit relating to ordinary activities - -
Net loss from ordinary activities after income tax (2,835,982) (865,366) (2,755,474) (699,820]
Expense attributable to members of the parent entity
Total changes in equity other than those resulting from (2.835,982) (865.,366]) (2.755.474)  (699,820)
transactions with owners as owners
Basic earnings per share 7 ($0.0564) ($0.0145)
Diluted earning per share ($0.0442) ($0.00895)

The statement of financial performance is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 22 to 43

Karoon Gas Australia Ltd
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2006

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
2006 2005 2006 2005
Note $ 5 5 5
Current assets
Cash assets 8 15,701,319 12,796,605 15,689,684 12,757,094
Receivables 9 113,894 131,895 46,872 96,045
Inventory 10 70,644 195,402 - -
Total current assets 15,885,857 13,123,902 15,736,556 12,853,139
Non-current assets
Receivables - - 17,222,647 3,204,948
Property, plant and equipment 12 88,992 97,670 88,992 97,670
Intangible assets 13 239,472 20,093 111,804 20,093
Exploration and evaluation expenditure carried forward 14 17,046,217 2,984,934 - -
Other financial assets 15 - 2,267 150,212 152,267
Total non-current assets 17,374,681 3,104,964 17,573,655 3.474,978
Total assets 33,260,538 16,228,866 33,310,211 16,328,117
Current liabilities
Payables 16 (148,245]) (154,733) (83,623) (94,949)
Provisions 17 (2,407) (2,521) (2,407) -
Total current liabilities (150,652) [157,254) (86.030] [94,949)
Total liabilities (150,652) (157,254) (86,030) (94,949)
Net assets 33,108,886 16,071,612 33,224,181 16,233,168
Equity
Contributed equity 18 34,267,888 16,990,948 34,267,688 16,990,849
Accumulated losses (3,610,528) [918,337] [3.496,029] (757,681)
Reserve 2,452,521 - 2,452,521 -
Total equity 33,109,886 16,071,612 33,224,181 16,233,168

The statement of financial performance is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 22 to 43

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Karoon Gas Australia Ltd




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2006

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY

Issued Capital ~Accumulated Losses Share based Total Equity
3 3 payments reserve
¢ $
Balance as at 1 July 2004 4,726,731 (148,092) - 4,578,639
Shares issued during the year 13,124,989 - 13,124,889
Transaction costs arising on share issues (860,771) - - (860,771)
Loss attributable to members of the parent entity 0 (626,451) - (626,451)
Balance as at 30 June 2005 16,990,949 (774,543) - 16,216,406
Shares issued during the financial year 18,246,790 - - 18,246,790
Transaction costs arising on share issues (697,500) - - (697,500)
Loss attributable to members of the parent entity - (2,835,982) - (2,835,982)
Excercise of Options (funds cleared 4 July 2006) (272,350) - - (272,350)
Share based payments - 2,452,521 2,452,521
Balance as at 30 June 2006 34,267,889 (3,610,525) 2,452,521 33,109,885

PARENT ENTITY

Issued Accumulated Share based Total Equity
Capital Losses payments 3
3 3 reserve
3

Balance as at 1 July 2004 4,726,731 (151,983) _ 4,574,748
Shares issued during the year 13,124,889 ) ) 13,124,889
Transaction costs arising on share issues (860,771) ) ) (860,771)
Loss attributable to members of the parent entity ) (605,698) ) (605,698)
Balance as at 50 June 2005 16,990,849 (757.681) . 16,233,168
Shares issued during the financial year 18,246,690 ) ) 18,246,690
Transaction costs arising on share issues (697.500) ) ) (697,500
Loss attributable to members of the parent entity ) (2,738,348 ) (2,738,348)
Excercise of Options (funds cleared 4 July 2006) (272.350] . ) (272.350)
Share based payments - 2,452,521 2,452,521
Balance as at 30 June 2006 34,267,688 (3,496,0289) 2,452,521 33,224,181

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

Karoon Gas Australia Ltd FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2006

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

20086 2005 2006 2005

Note $ $ $ $
Cash flows from Operating Activities
Receipt from Customers (inclusive of goods and 1,540,011 443,780 224,887 147,253
services tax)
Payments to suppliers (inclusive of goods and services (1,365,671] [(1,149,296) (1,361,152] (876,417)
tax]
Interest received 931,762 157,876 929,521 157,056
Net cash flows used in operating activities 22 1,106,102 (547,540) (206,744) (572,108])
Cash flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (inclusive of (189,617) (119,067) (189,617) (118,067)
goods and services tax]
Purchase of investments (8,966) (40,437) (7,436) (1,055)
Payments for exploration and development expenditure (15,357,204) (2,986,202) - (59,894)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (15,555,787]) (3,145,706) (197,053) (180,0186)
Cash flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 17,276,940 12,264,218 17,276,841 12,264,118
Loans to Subsiduaries - - (14,017,912) (2,963,493)
Net cash flows from Financing Activities 17,276,940 12,264,218 3,258,929 9,300,625
Net decrease in cash held 2,827,255 8,570,972 2,855,132 8,548,501
Cash at the beginning of the year 12,796,605 4,225,633 12,757,093 4,208,592
Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of 77,459 - 77,459 -
cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currency
Cash at the end of the year 15,701,319 12,796,605 15,689,684 12,757,094

The statement of financial performance is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 22 to 44
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2006

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The financial report is a general purpose financial report that
has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001, relevant Australian Accounting Standards,
Urgent Issues Group Interpretations and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board.

The financial report includes separate financial statements for
Karoon Gas Australia Limited as an individual entity and the Group
consisting of Karoon Gas Australia Limited and its subsidiaries.

Karoon Gas Australia Limited is a publicly listed company limited
by shares and is listed in Australia on the ASX. It is incorporated
and domiciled in Australia.

The registered office of Karoon Gas Australia Limited and the
principal place of business is located at Office 7a, 34-38 Lochiel
Avenue, Mount Martha VIC 3934. The technical office of Karoon
Gas Australia Limited is located on the 9th Floor, 406 Collin
Street, Melbourne VIC 3000.

As this is the first full-year financial report prepared under
Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting
Standards, the accounting policies applied are inconsistent with
those in the financial report for the previous financial year ended
30 June 2005 as that report was presented under previous
Australian GAAP, refer Note 1(b] below.

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies
adopted by the Group in the preparation of this financial report.
The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless
otherwise stated.

Reporting Basis and Convention

The financial report has been prepared on an accrual basis and
is based on historical costs modified, when relevant, by the
revaluation of selected non-current assets, financial assets and
financial liabilities for which the fair value basis of accounting has
been applied.

Karoon Gas Australia Ltd

(a)  Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of Karoon Gas Australia Limited [“Company”] and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”).

A subsidiary is any entity controlled by Karoon Gas Australia
Limited whereby Karoon Gas Australia Limited has the power to
control the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

All subsidiaries have a June financial year-end.

All inter-company balances and transactions between subsidiaries
in the Group, including any unrealised profits or losses, have been
eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistencies with
those policies applied by the Company.

Where subsidiaries have entered or left the Group during the
period, their operating results have been included/excluded from
the date control was obtained or until the date control ceased.

(b)  Statement of Compliance

This financial report complies with relevant Australian Accounting
Standards, which include Australian equivalents to International
Financial Reporting Standards [“AIFRS”]). Compliance with AIFRS
ensures that the financial report for the financial year ended 30
June 2008, comprising the consolidated and Company financial
statements and notes thereto, complies with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

This is the first full-year financial report prepared based on AIFRS
and comparatives for the financial year ended 30 June 2005 have
been restated accordingly.

Reconciliations of AIFRS equity and AIFRS loss for the financial
year ended 30 June 2005 prepared under previous Australian
GAAP are detailed in Note 25 below.

[c] Comparative Figures

When required by Australian Accounting Standards, comparative
figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation
for the current financial year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2006

[d) Income Taxes
Current tax

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit or
loss for the period adjusted for any non-assessable or disallowable
items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
are substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method
in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes. No deferred income tax will be recognised
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability, excluding a
business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realised or liability is settled.
Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax is adjusted directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future tax profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised
in the future is based on the assumption that no adverse change
will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation that the
Group will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the
benefit to be realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility
imposed by law.

Tax consolidation

Karoon Gas Australia Limited and its wholly-owned Australian
subsidiaries have formed an income tax consolidated group under the
Tax Consolidation Regime from 1 July 2003. The tax consolidated
group has entered a tax sharing agreement whereby each company
in the group contributes to the income tax payable in proportion to
their contribution to the net profit before tax of the tax consolidated
group.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[e] Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts, when relevant, are shown within short-term borrowings
in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

(f]  Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

The cost of casing and oilfield inventory includes direct materials,
direct labour and transportation costs relating to oilfield activities.

[g) Property, Plant and Equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or
fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis less
depreciation and, when relevant, impairment losses.

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually
by the Directors to ensure it is not in excess of the recoverable
amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on
the basis of the expected net cash flows that will be received from
the asset’s employment and subsequent disposal. The expected
net cash flows have been discounted to their present values in
determining recoverable amounts.

The cost of plant and equipment constructed within the Group
includes the cost of materials, direct labour, borrowing costs and
an appropriate proportion of fixed and variable overheads.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2006

(h)  Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation and amortisation

All assets have limited useful lives and are depreciated/amortised using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives
The depreciation/amortisation rates and methods are reviewed annually to determine the most appropriate method.

The depreciation/amortisation rates used for each class of asset, for the current and previous years, are as follows:

Plant and equipment 25 - B50%

Goodwill 10 %

Assets are depreciated or amortised from the month following their acquisition.

(] Intangibles

Computer software is recognised at cost of acquisition. Computer software costs have a finite life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Computer software costs are amortised over their useful life ranging from 2 to 3 years.

(l  Exploration and Evaluation Expenditure

Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred is accumulated in respect of each identifiable area of interest. These costs are only carried
forward on the balance sheet where rights to tenure are current and to the extent that costs are expected to be recouped through either the
successful development of the area or where activities in the area have not yet reached a stage that permits reasonable assessment of the
existence of economically recoverable reserves and active and significant exploration activity in, or in relation to, the area is continuing.

A regular review is undertaken of each area of interest to determine the appropriateness of continuing to carry forward costs in relation to
that area of interest.

Accumulated costs in relation to an abandoned area are written off in full in the income statement during the period in which the decision to
abandon the area is made.

Provision for restoration is recognized when there is a legal or constructive obligation to do so. A corresponding restoration asset amount
(included in exploration and evaluation expenditure carried forward) of an amount equivalent to the provision is also created. The amount
recognised is the estimated cost of restoration, discounted to its net present value and is reassessed each year in accordance with local
conditions and requirements. Changes in the estimates of restoration cost estimates are dealt with prospectively by recording an adjustment
to the provision and a corresponding adjustment to the restoration asset. The unwinding of the discount on the restoration provision is included
in the income statement.

Where it is established that economically recoverable reserves exist in a particular area of interest, the carrying amount attributable to that
discovery is reclassified as a development asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2006

(k] Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date.

(] Impairment of Assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication of impairment exists, the Group makes an estimate of recoverable amount, being the
higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount any
excess is expensed to the income statement.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

(m)  Financial Instruments

Recognition

Financial instruments are initially measured at cost on trade date, which includes transaction costs, when the related contractual rights or obligations
exist. Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments are measured as set out below.

Financial assets at fair value through the income statement

A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so designated by Management and
within the requirement of AASB 139 ‘Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments’. Derivatives are also recognised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Realised and recognised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of these assets are included
in the income statement in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and are stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Held-to-maturity investments

These investments have fixed maturities, and it is the Group’s intention to hold these investments to maturity. Any held-to-maturity investments held
by the Group are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include any financial assets not included in the above categories. Available-for-sale financial assets are reflected at
fair value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are taken directly to equity.

Financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial liabilities are recognised at amortised cost, comprising original debt less principal payments and amortisation.
Derivative instruments

Derivative instruments are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are taken to the income statement unless they
are designated as hedges.

Fair value

Fair value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted investments. Valuation techniques are applied to determine the fair value for
all unlisted securities, including recent arm’s length transactions, reference to similar instruments and option pricing models.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial instrument has been impaired. In the case of
available-for-sale financial instruments, a prolonged decline in the value of the instrument is considered to determine whether impairment has arisen.
Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(n)  Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each of the Group’s entities is measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
that entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Australian dollars which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

Transaction and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the
balance sheet date exchange rate. Non-monetary items measured
at historical cost continue to be carried at the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value are reported at the exchange rate at the date when fair
values were determined.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items
are recognised in the income statement, except where deferred in
equity as a qualifying cash flow or net investment hedge.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary
items are recognised directly in equity to the extent that the gain
or loss is directly recognised in equity, otherwise the exchange
difference is recognised in the income statement.

[0) Revenue

Sales

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised upon the delivery of
goods to customers.

Revenue from the rendering of a service is recognised upon the
delivery of the service. All revenue is stated net of the amount of
goods and services tax.

Interest

Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into
account the interest rates applicable to the financial assets.

Dividends

Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to receive a dividend
has been established. Dividends received from associates are
accounted for in accordance with the equity method of accounting.

[p)  Employee Benefits

\Wages and salaries, leave entitlements

An accrual is made for the Group’s liability for employee benefits
arising from services rendered by employees to balance date.
Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year
have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liability is settled, plus related on-costs.

Employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured
at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be
made for those benefits. In calculating the present value of future
cash outflows in respect of long service leave, the probability of long
service leave being taken is based on historical data.

Karoon Gas Australia Ltd

For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2006

Share based payments

Share based compensation benefits are provided to employees via
the Karoon Gas Australia Limited Employee Share Option Plan.

For share options granted after 7 November 2002 and vested after
1 January 2005, the fair value of options granted is recognised as
a share based payments expense with a corresponding increase
in equity (the share base payments reserve]. The fair value is
measured at grant date and recognised over the period during which
the individual become unconditionally entitled to the options. Upon
the exercise of options, the balance of the share base payments
reserve relating to those options is transferred to issued capital.

[d) Goods and Services Tax [“GST”)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of
GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable
from the Australian Tax Office (*“ATO”). In these circumstances
the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or equity or as part of an item of expense.

Receivables and payables in the balance sheet are shown inclusive
of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is
included as a current asset or liability in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross
basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing
and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to,
the ATO are classified as operating cash flows.

(r]  Going Concern

On the basis of the Group’s present level of operations, the
Directors are of the opinion that for the next 12-month period
from the date of signing the Directors’ Declaration the Group and
Company both have the ability to:

i. farm-out interests in permits for a carry in order to meet
future exploration expenditure commitments; and

ii. raise additional capital through the issue of additional new
ordinary shares to meet working capital reqguirements and
shortfalls in exploration expenditure commitments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2006

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
20086 2005 20086 2005

Note $ 5 5 8
2. REVENUE
Operating activities
Interest income 931,762 157,976 929,521 157,056
Services revenue from subsidiaries - - 72,626 -
Total revenue 931,762 157,976 1,002,147 157,056
Non-operating activities
Net foreign currency gains 77,459 - 77,459 -
Total other income 77,458 - 77,459 -
3. LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVIES BEFORE INCOME TAX
Loss before income tax includes the following specific expenses:
1. Depreciation of plant and equipment and amortization of software 106,584 65,225 106,584 48,099
2. Rental expense on operating leases 56,060 24,960 56,060 24,960
3. Exploration and evaluation expenses written off 78,230 - 78,230 -
4. Net foreign currency gain 77,459 - 77,459 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2006

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
2006 2005 2006 2005
Note 5 $ $ 3
4. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
Auditing or reviewing the financial report 5,500 15,000 2,455 12,000
Other non-audit services - - - -
Total auditor’s remuneration 5,500 15,000 2,455 12,000
5. INCOME TAX
(a) Income tax expense
The prima facie tax on loss ordinary activities before income - - - -
tax is reconciled to income tax as follows:
Prima facie tax payable on the loss from ordinary activities (850,795) (187,935) (826,642) (181,710)
before income tax calculated at the Australian tax rate of
?D% 005; 30%;1 ) . .
ax effect of amounts in calculating taxable income:

Add:
- Non-deductible write off of capital assets - - - -
- Accumulated losses not brought into account 5,065,816 1,002,742 823,278 181,075
- Other non-deductible items 4,414 1,100 4,414 1,100

4,219,435 815,907 1,050 465
Less:
- Exploration expenses deductible for tax purposes (4,218,385) (815,442) - -
- Other deductible items (1,050) (4B65) (1,050) (485)

- - (1,050) (485)

Income tax expense - - - -

[b) Tax consolidation

Karoon Gas Australia Limited and its wholly-owned Australian subsidiaries are a tax consolidated group. Karoon Gas Australia Limited is the head
entity within the tax consolidated group. The tax consolidated group has entered a tax sharing agreement whereby each company in the group
contributes to the income tax payable in proportion to their contribution to the net profit before tax of the tax consolidated group. In addition, the
agreement provides for the allocation of income tax liabilities between entities, should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2006

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2006 2005 2006 2005
$ 8 8 $

6. DIVIDENDS
There were no ordinary dividends proposed/paid during the year ended 30 June 2006 by the Company. (2005:$NIL)

7. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings used in the calculation of basic and dilutive earnings

per share

(a) Basic loss per share ($0,0564) ($0.0145) - -
(b] Diluted loss per share ($0,0442) ($0.0095) - -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the

calculation of basic earnings per share 81,241,897 43,190,626 - -
Weighted average number of options outstanding 7,000,000 22,101,700 - -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year used in calculating diluted earnings per share - - - -

Potential ordinary shares 88,241,897 65,689,663 - -

Options outstanding at 30 June 2006 are considered to be potential ordinary shares for the purposes of determining diluted earnings per share.

8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank of hand 6,426,152 12,796,605 6,417,517 12,757,094
Bank deposits at call 9,272,167 - 9,272,167 -
Total cash and cash equivalents 15,701,319 12,796,605 15,689,684 12,757,094

(a) Cash at bank and on hand

The Australian dollar cash at bank and on hand balance is non-interest bearing. The United States dollar cash at bank had an interest rate of
4.25% as at 30 June 2006. The Professional Funds cash at bank and on hand balance had an interest rate of 5.65% as at 30 June 2006.

(b) Bank deposits at call

The weighted average interest rate on bank deposits as at 30 June 2006 was 5.25%. The Australian Term Deposit has a maturity of less than
30 days. The United States Dollar Term Deposit has a maturity of less than 60 days.

(c) Effective Interest Rates

Information concerning the weighted average interest rate for the prior year is set out in Note 20.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2006

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
2006 2005 2006 2005
% 8 3 $

9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Current
Trade debtors 48,348 131,895 16,064 12,837
Other receivables 65,545 - 30,808 83,208
Total current trade and other receivable 113,894 131,895 46,872 96,045
Non-Current
Karoon Gas Pty Ltd - - 17,222,647 3,204,948
Less: Provision for doubtful debts - - - -
Total non-current trade and other receivables - - 17,222,647 3,204,948

(a) Trade debtors

Trade debtors are recognized initially at fair value and are due for settlement no more than 30 days from the date of recognition.
Collectibility of trade debtors is reviewed on an ongoing basis.

(b]) Other receivables

Includes GST receivables of $65,545 [2005: $88,304] and $30,808 (2005: $83,208] as at 30 June 2006 for the Group and Company
respectively.

(c) Effective Interest Rates and Credit Risk

Information concerning the Group’s exposure to interest rate changes and credit risk on both current and non-current receivables is set out
in Note 20.

10. INVENTORIES

Current
Inventory at cost

70,644 195,402 - N
Total current inventories 70,644 195,402 - -

Casing and oilfield inventory is expected to be realized or used in projects within 12 months
11. OTHER ASSETS

Non-current

Exploration and evaluation costs carried forward in respect of areas of

. 17,046,217 2,984,934 - -
interst
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2006

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
2006 2005 2006 2005
$ $ $ $

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and equipment
At cost 210,965 140,891 210,965 140,891
Accumulated depreciation (121,973) (43,221) (121,973) (43,221)
Total plant and equipment 88,992 97,670 88,992 97,670
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant
and equipment are set out below:
Plant and equipment
Balance at beginning of financial year 97,670 46,370 97,670 46,370
Additions 70,074 92,450 70,074 92,450
Depreciation expense (78,752) (41,150]) (78,752) (41,150)
Carrying amount at end of financial year 88,992 97,670 88,992, 97,670
13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer software
At cost 146,670 27,127 146,670 27,127
Accumulated amortization (34,866) (7,034) (34,866) (7,034)
Net carrying value 111,804 20,093 111,804 20,093
Goodwill
Goodwill on acquisition of Karoon Gas Pty Ltd 171,951 171,951 - -
Accumulated amortization (44,283) (27,157) - -
Net carrying value 127,668 144,794 - -
Total intangibles, at net book value 239,472 164,887 111,804 20,093
Reconciliation of the carrying amount for computer software is set out
below:
Balance at beginning of financial year 20,093 425 20,093 425
Additions 119,543 26,617 119,543 26,617
Amortization charge (27,832) (6,949) (27,832) (6,949)
Net carrying at end of financial year 111,804 20,093 111,804 20,093
Reconciliation of the carrying amount for goodwill is set out below:
Balance at beginning of financial year 144,794 161,920 - -
Amortisation charge (17,1286) (17,1286) - -
Net carrying at end of financial year 127,668 144,794 - -
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For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2006

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
2006 2005 2006 2005
Note
$ $ 5 $
14. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION EXPENDITURE CARRIED FORWARD
Balance at beginning of financial year - 2,984,934 266,796 - -
Expenditure incurred - 14,139,514 2,696,582 - -
Amounts expensed to income statement - (78,230]) - - -
Net carrying amount at end of financial year (refer note [b) below]) - 17,046,217 2,984,934 - -

Exploration and evaluation expenditure carried forward to the areas of interest in the exploration phase for petroleum exploration permits
PEP162/EL4537 and WA314P and WA315P.

The expenditure is carried forward on the basis that exploration and evaluation expenditure activities in the areas have not reached a stage that
permits reasonable assessment of the existence or otherwise of economically recoverable reserves and active and significant activity in, or in
relation, to the areas is continuing.

The ultimate recovery of capitalised exploration and evaluation expenditure is dependent on the successful development and commercial
exploitation or the commercial sale of the relevant areas of interest.

15. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Non-current
Investment in subsidiary companies at cost 19 - 2,267 150,212 152,267

Total non-current other financial assets - - 2,267 150,212 152,267

(a) Effective interest rates and credit risk

Information concerning the Group’s exposure to interest rate changes and credit risk on the security deposit is set out in Note 20

16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Current-unsecured liabilities

Trade payables 95,927 107,813 45,405 51,308
Sundry payables and accrued expenditure 52,318 46,920 38,218 43,641
Total trade and other payables 148,245 154,733 83,623 94,949

Effective Interest Rates and Credit Risk

Information concerning the weighted average interest rate other payables is set out in Note 24

17. PROVISIONS

Short-term
Provision for Fringe Benefits Tax 1,918 1,050 1,918 1,050
Total short-term provision 1,918 1,050 1,918 1,050
Long Term
Employee benefits (long service leave] 489 - 489 -
Total long-term provision 489 - 489 -
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Movements in each class of provision during the financial year are set out below:

Fringe Benefits Tax Provision

Consolidated and Company 2006 Short-term Provision for Fringe Benefits Tax Long-term Employee Benefits
8 8

Balance at beginning of financial year 1,050 -

Additional provisions 8,686 489

Amounts used (7,818) -

Balance at end of financial year 1,918 489

Fringe benefits tax (“(FBT"] is a tax payable by the Company on the value of certain benefits, known as fringe benefits that have been
provided to employees or to associates of those employees in respect of their employment during an FBT year ending 31 March. The
Company’s FBT liability is due and payable during May each year, along with lodgement of the annual FBT return. A provision is raised for
the estimated FBT amount. The Company is required to pay the tax in quarterly ‘notional tax’ instalments.

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
2006 2005 2006 2005
] 3 3 3
18. ISSUED CAPITAL
(a) Share Capital
80,273,897 (2050: 53,819,697] fully paid ordinary shares 34,267,689 16,990,849 34,267,689 16,990,849

Ordinary share participate in dividends as declared from time to time and the proceeds on winding up of the parent entity in proportion to the
number of shares held.

At the shareholders meeting, on a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy is entitled to one
vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.

(b) Movements in ordinary share capital

Number
Date Details Notes Of Issue Price $
Shares
1 July 2005 Opening balance 16,990,849
16 August 2005 Share Placement (a) 53,819,619 $1.80 13,950,000
Less: Transaction
costs arising on share 7,750,000 - (697,500])
issue
1/7/05 - 30/6/06 Exercise of options (b) 19,327,200 $0.20 3,865,440
1/7/05 - 30/6/06 Exercise of options (c) 345,000 $1.25 431,250
30 June 2006 Exercise of options (272,350])
30 June 2006 Closing balance 81,241,897 - 34,267,689

(c) Share Placement

Funds raised by placement were planned for use in the 2D and 3D seismic surveys in the West Australian Permits WA-314-P and WA-
315-P as well as further drilling and seismic surveys in PEP- 162.

(d) Employee share option plan

Information relating to the Karoon Employee Share Option Plan, including details of options issued, exercised and lapsed during the financial
year and options outstanding at the end of the financial year, is set out in Note 29
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Percentage of equity

19. SUBSIDIARIES o Investment
and voting interests held
) . 2006 2005 2006 2005
Name Country of incorporation
% % $ 8
Parent entity )
Karoon Gas Australia Limited Australia
Subsidiaries
Karoon Gas Pty Ltd Australia 100% 100% 150,000 150,000
Eastern Pacific Coal Pty Ltd Australia 100% 100% 212 -
Karoon Gas Browse Basin Pty Ltd Australia 100% 100% - -
Total 150,212 150,000

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE

The main purpose of non-derivative financial instruments is to raise finance for Group operations. The Group’s activities expose it primarily
to the financial risk of changes in foreign exchange rate movements and interest rates. The Group may enter into various derivative financial
instruments to manage its exposure to these risks. The Group does not enter into or trade in derivative financial instruments for speculative
purposes. For the financial year ended 30 June 2006, the Group and Company did not enter into any derivative financial instruments.

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis
on which income and expenses are recognised in respect of each class of financial asset and financial liability are disclosed in Note 1.
a) Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, at balance date to recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets, net of any provisions for impairment, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial
statements.

The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, at balance date to recognise financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets, net of any provisions for impairment, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements.

The Group does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single debtor or group of debtors under non-derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group.
b) Net fair values

The net fair values of listed investments will be valued at the quoted market bid price at balance date adjusted for transaction costs expected
to be incurred. For other assets and other liabilities the net fair value approximates their carrying value. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are not readily traded on organised markets in standardised form other than listed investments.

The aggregate net fair values and carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in the balance sheet and in the notes
to the financial statements.

c] Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in foreign currencies arising from the purchase of goods and services in currencies other than Australian
dollars. The main foreign currency exposure is United States dollars. The Group manages foreign exchange risk by monitoring forecast cash
flows in currencies other than Australian dollars and ensuring that adequate United States dollar cash balances are maintained.

d) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a financial instrument’s value will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates, and the weighted average interest rate for classes of financial assets and financial liabilities is set out next page:
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) . Fixed interest Non-
) Weighted . Floating maturing 1 interest- TOTAL
interest rate interest rate ;
year or less bearing
% $ $ $ $
2006
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5.33 5,757,242 9,272,167 671,910 15,701,319
Trade and other receivables - - - -
Other financial assets - - - -
Total financial assets 5,757,242 9,272,167 671,910 15,701,319
2005
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5.35 12,743,969 - 52,635 12,796,605
Trade and other receivables - - - B
Other financial assets - - - B
Total financial assets 12,743,969 B 52,635 12,796,605
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21. Commitments for Expenditure

As at 30 June 2006

a) Capital expenditure commitments

Later than 1 Year
but not Later than 5
Years

Description Not later than 1
Year

Later than 5
Years

As at 30 June 2006

Plant & equipment-100% Karoon - -
Seismic Acquisition-100% Karoon 4,236,111 -
Driling-100% Karoon - -

Total 4,236,111 .

b) Operating lease rental commitments
Non-cancellable operating lease rental, not provided for in the financial statements and payable:

Later than 1 Year

Description Not later than 1 but not Later than 5 Later than 5
Year Years
Years
As at 30 June 2006
(i) Office rent-Mt Martha 16,918 - -
(i) Office rent-Collins Street 85,000 275,949 -
Total 101,918 275,949 -

In respect of non-cancellable operating leases the following provisions have been recognised :
Note : Operating leasing arrangements

A general description about the lessees leasing arrangements should be disclosed, including:

(i) The Company has an office lease with a primary 3-year term that expires on the 4th March 2007. Rent is payable monthly in

advance. There is an option to extend for another 3 years.

i) The Company has an office lease with a 4 year primary term and a 4% per annum increase, expiring une . Rent is payable
i) The G y h ffice | itha 4 yi imary da 4% i iring 30 J 2008. Rent is payabl

monthly in advance. There is an option for a 4 year extension.
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(c] Other expenditure commitments [Firm Commitments only]

Commitments for exploration expenditure arising from obligations to government, to perform minimum exploration work and expend
minimum amounts of money on such work in exploration licence areas. The commitments existing at balance date attributable to the
consolidated entity, which are not provided for in the financial statements are expected to fall due as follows :

Later than 1 Year

Description Not later than 1 but not Later than Later than 5
year 5 Years Years

Gippsland Permits(PEP162 & EL4537) 270,000

West Australian Permits (WA-314-P & WA-315-P) 45,000,000 45,000,000

Total 45,270,000 45,000,000 -

Notes:

(a) Estimates for future exploration expenditure commitments are based on estimated well and seismic costs which will change as actual
drilling locations and seismic surveys are organised and are determined in current dollars on an undiscounted basis.

b) Where exploration expenditure included in this category relates to an existing contract for expenditure and/or signed AFEs as at 30
June 2006, the amount will be included in both categories (a) and [b) above.

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
2006 2005 2006 2005

$ 5 5 5
22.NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
(a) Reconciliation of Loss after Income Tax to Cash Flow from Operations
[Loss)/Profit after income tax (2,835,982) (626,451) [2.738.,348] (605,698)
Add/[subtract) non-cash items
Depreciation of plant and equipment and amortization of software 123,710 65,225 123,710 65,225
Share based payments expensed 2,452,521 - 2,452,521 -
Reversal of impairment losses for non-current receivables [subsidiaries) - - - -
Impairment losses for non-current receivables [subsidiaries) - - - -
Net foreign currency losses (gains) (77,459) - (77,459) -
ltems classified as investing/financing activities: - - - -
Exploration and evaluation expenditure expensed 78,230 - - -
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
[Increase)/Decrease in assets
Trade and other receivables — current - - - -
Other assets - current - - - -
Trade and other receivables — non-current - - - -
Other financial assets — non-current - - - -
Increase/(decrease] in liabilities - - - -
Trade and other payables - current - - - -
Short-term provisions 31,397 (2,521) 31,397 (2,521)
Long-term provisions 489 - 489 -
Net cash used in operating activities 1,106,102 547,540 206,744 572,108
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23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Parent entity
The ultimate parent entity within the Group is Karoon Gas Australia Limited.

[b) Subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are set out in Note 19

During the financial year, the Company provided accounting, administrative and technical services to subsidiaries at cost as set out in Note
2. Other transactions that occurred were advancement of intercompany loans at Nil interest rate and no fixed term for repayment. Loans
are unsecured. These transactions are eliminated on consolidation. Loans advanced to and repayments from subsidiaries are set out in the
Cash Flow Statements.

(c) Directors and Specified Executives

Disclosures relating to Directors and Specified Executives are set out in the Directors’ Report. Apart from the details disclosed in this
note, no Director or Specified Executive has entered into a material contract with the Company or the Group since the end of the previous
financial year and there were no material contracts involving Directors’ or Specified Executives’ interests subsisting as at 30 June 2006.

(d) Other transactions with the Company

During the financial year Mr Robert Hosking had an interest in Ropat Nominees Pty Ld which provided rental premises to the Group. The
value of the transactions during the financial year was : $ 25,000 (2005 : $25,000).

24. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

(a) Share Option Plan
(i) Employee Share Option Plan

The Company has one Employee Share Option Plan (“ESOP”], which was approved by shareholders at the 2004 annual general meeting. Options
expire two years after they are granted. The exercise price of options, issued during the financial year, is based on the weighted average price
at which the Company’s shares are traded on ASX during the two months of trading days before the options are granted. Options may be
exercised after the date the option was granted. If there is a change of control of the Company, all unexercised options will become immediately
exercisable. Options granted under ESOP carry no dividend or voting rights. \When exercisable, each option is convertible into one ordinary share
of the Company.

The following reconciles the outstanding share options granted under ESOP at the beginning and end of the financial year:

Consolidated and Company Consolidated and Company

2006 2005

Weighted average Weighted average

Number exercise price Number exercise price

5 5

Balance at beginning of financial year 415,000 1.25 0 -
Granted during the financial year - - 415,000 1.25
Exercised during the financial year (345,000) (1.25) 0 -
Forfeited during the financial year 0 - 0 -
Expired during the financial year (70,000]) (1.258) 0 -
Balance at end of financial year 0 0 415,000 1.25
Exercisable at end of financial year 0 0 415,000 1.25
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24. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS [Continued)

(i) Other Options

The Company has granted five million other options during the financial year. These options expire within two years after they are granted.
The exercise price of options is based on the weighted average price at which the Company’s shares are traded on ASX during the two months
of trading days before the options are granted. Options may be exercised after the date the option was granted. If there is a change of
control of the Company, all unexercised options will become immediately exercisable. Options granted carry no dividend or voting rights. \When
exercisable, each option is convertible into one ordinary share of the Company.

The following reconciles the outstanding other share options granted at the beginning and end of the financial year:

Consolidated and Company Consolidated and Company

2006 2005
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number  gxercise price Nurmnber exercise
price
E $
Balance at beginning of financial year 20,849,200 $0.20 22,331,750 $0.20
Granted during the financial year 5,500,000 $1.91 - -
Exercised during the financial year (19,327,200) ($0.20] [1,482,550) $0.20
Forfeited during the financial year - - - -
Expired during the financial year (22,000] - - -
Balance at end of financial year 7,000,000 $1.91 20,848,200 $0.20
Exercisable at end of financial year 7,000,000 $1.91 20,849,200 $0.20

The weighted average share price when the share options were exercised during 2006 was $1.66.

The options outstanding as at 30 June 2006 had a weighted average exercise price of $1.91 with a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 873 days.

b) Detail of other options outstanding at the end of the financial

year:
Grant date Expiry and exercise date Exe;rr:‘:z: Number

18 November 2005 30 September 2008 $1.75 1,500,000
18 November 2005 30 September 2008 $2.00 1,500,000
18 November 2005 30 September 2008 $2.25 1,500,000
18 November 2005 30 June 2007 $1.35 500,000
18 November 2005 30 October 2007 $1.65 500,000
5,500,000

Fair value of options
The weighed average fair value of the ESOP and other options granted during the financial year was $0.33. The fair value of each option
during the financial year was estimated on grant date using the Black & Scholes option pricing model. The Black & Scholes option pricing
model takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the vesting and performance criteria, the impact of dilution, the non-
tradeable nature of the option, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield
and the risk-free interest rate for the term of the option. The Company has applied the following assumptions and inputs:
Weighted average exercise price  $0.22 [2005: $0.20)
Weighted average life of options 707 days (2005: 502 days)
Weighted average share price  $1.48 (2005: $0.48)
Expected share price volatility 39% (2005: 29%)
Risk-free interest rate  5.25% (2005: 5.23%)
Historical volatility has been the basis for determining expected share price volatility as it is assumed that this is indicative of future tender,

which may not eventuate.
Included under employee benefits expense in the income statement is $2,452,521 relating to the ESOP (2005: $0.00}, in full, to equity-

settled share based payments transactions.
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D5. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a) Employee share option plan

Information relating to the Karoon Gas Australia Limited Employee Share Option Plan, including details of options issued, exercised and
expired during the financial year and options outstanding at the end of the financial year, is set out in Note 24.

(b) Superannuation plans
During the financial year, the Company contributed to accumulation type benefit funds administered by fund managers. The funds cover all

Australian domiciled employees of the Company. Employee and employer contributions are based on a fixed percentage of cash salary. The
current contribution is 9% (2005: 9%]) of employee cash remuneration.

(c) Employees

The number of employees as at 30 June 2006 was 4 (2005: 2] for Karoon Gas Australia Limited and the Group. The number of employees
includes both full time employees and part time employees measured on a full time equivalent basis.

26. FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

1. Impact on the statements of financial position as at 1 July 2004

Consolidated Parent Entity
Existin% GAAP Eg;‘z‘r’fggf AIFRS Existin% GAAP E;;Z‘r’]tggf AIFRS
$ 5 8 $
Current assets
Cash assets 4,225,633 - 4,225,633 4,208,593 - 4,208,593
Receivables 66,046 - 66,046 46,481 - 46,481
Total current assets 4,291,679 - 4,291,679 4,255,073 - 4,255,073
Non-current assets
Other financial assets 1,212 - 1,212 151,212 - 151,212
Receivables - - - 241,455 - 241455
Property, plant and equipment 46,795 - 46,795 46,795 - 46,795
Intangible assets 161,920 (161,920] - - - -
Other assets 266,796 - 266,796 - - -
Total non-current assets 478,723 (161,920) 313,591 439,462 - 439,462
Total assets 4,768,402 (161,920) 4,606,482 4,694,535 - 4,694,535
Current liabilities
Payables (189,764) - (189,764) (119,787) - [119,787)
Total current liabilities (189,764) - (189,764) (119,787) - [119,787)
Total liabilities (189,764) - (189,764) (119,787) - [119,787)
Net assets 4,578,638 (161,920) 4,416,718 4,574,748 - 4,574,748
Equity
Contributed equity 4,728,731 - 4,726,731 4,728,731 - 4,728,731
Accumulated losses (148,092) (161,920) (310,012) (151,983) - [151,983)
Total equity 4,578,638 (161,920) 4,578,638 4,574,748 - 4,574,748
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26. FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS continued

1. Impact on the statements of financial position as at 30 June 2005

Consolidated Parent Entity
Existing GAAP ch:z%gf i Existing GAAP E;;Z%tggf AFRS
$ B
Current assets
Cash assets 12,796,605 - 12,796,605 12,757,094 - 12,757,094
Receivables 131,895 - 131,895 96,045 - 96,045
Other 195,402 - 185,402 - - -
Total current assets 13,123,902 13,123,902 12,853,138 12,853,139
Non-current assets
Other financial assets 2,267 - 2,267 152,267 - 152,267
Receivables - - - 3,204,948 - 3,204,948
Property, plant and equipment 117,763 - 117,763 117,763 - 117,763
Intangible assets 144.794 (144,794) - - -
Other assets 2,984,934 - 2,984,934 - - -
Total non-current assets 3,249,758 (144,794) 3,104,964 3.474,978 3.474,978
Total assets 16,373,660 [144,794) 16,228,866 16,328,117 16,328,117
Current liabilities
Payables (154,733) - (154,733) (94,949) - [94,949)
Provisions (2,521) - (2,521) - - -
Total current liabilities (157,254) - (157,254) (94,949) - [94,949)
Total liabilities (157,254) - (157,254) (94,949) - [94,949)
Net assets 16,216,406 (144,794) 16,071,612 16,233,168 - 16,233,168
Equity
Contributed equity 16,990,949 - 16,990,949 16,990,849 - 16,990,849
Accumulated losses (774,543) (144,794) (919,337) (757.681) - (757,681)
Total equity 16,216,406 (144,794) 16,071,612 16,233,168 - 16,233,168
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26. FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

2. Reconciliation of Income Statement for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2005

Consolidated Entity

Adjustments

Parent Entity

Adjustments

Notes ) oooon ~on
Australian introduction Australian introduction
GAAP of AIFRS AIFRS GAAP of AIFRS AIFRS
$ $ $ $ $ $
Revenue D 599,821 - 599,821 598,020 451,942 1,049,962
B R (300,548 - eoosa ~ : :
Impairment losses - - - [12,707.836) - [12,707,836)
Finance costs (3,216) - (3.216) (3.216) - (3,216)
Consulting fees (24,320) - (24,320) (10,045) - (10,045)
Employee benefits expense (net) C,D (419,992) (314,822) (734,814) (419,992) (766,764) (1,1886,756)
Directors’ fees and superannuation (140,833) - (140,833) (140,833) - (140,833)
Depreciation and amortisation expense (88,858) - (88,858) (88,858) - (88,858)
Travel and accommodation expenses (71,119) - (71,119) (69,239) - (69,239)
Property costs (80,574) - (80,574) (80,574) - (80,574)
Professional fees (53,216) - (53,218) (36,781) - (86,781)
Share registry and listing fees (113,768) - (113,768) (112,009) - (112,009)
Corporate promotion and annual report (53,075) - (53,075) (47,345) - (47,345)
Computer support costs (73,397) - (73,397) (73,397) - (73,397)
Accounting and taxation fees (29,194) - (29,194) (21,194) - (21,194)
Operating lease rental expense (6,887) - (6,887) (6,887) - (6,887)
Subscription fees (17,498) - (17,498) (17,498) - (17,498)
Other expenses (164,302) - (164,302) (144,347) - (144,347)
Loss before income tax C (1,040,974) (814,822) [1,355,796) (13,382,031) [314,822) (13,696,853)
Income tax expense - - - - - -
'ﬁgiznAttE:E;‘;ab'e to Members of the C  [1.040,974) [314,822) (1.355796) (13.382,031)  (314.822) (13,696,853)
Cents Cents Cents
Basic loss per share C (0.47) (0.15] (0.62)
refer note refer note refer note

Diluted loss per share

(a]

(a]

(a)

(a) Diluted loss per share was not disclosed as the amount did not materially reflect a less favourable result than basic loss per share.
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26. FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Notes to the Reconciliations of Equity as at 1 July 2004 and 30 June 2005 and Income Statement for the Financial Year Ended 30 June
2005

Exploration and evaluation expenditure carried forward
A — Under AASB B ‘Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources’, pre-exploration costs are expensed.

Accrued annual leave

B - Under AASB 137 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, amounts due to employees for accrued annual leave are
reported as part of Trade and other payables rather than Provisions.

Share based payments

C - Under AASB 2 ‘Share Based Payments’, from 1 July 2004 the Group is required to recognise an expense for those options that were
issued to employees under the Karoon Gas Employee Share Option Plan after 7 November 2002 but that had not vested by 1 January 2005.
Share based payments are expensed over the vesting period of the options based on fair value of the option at grant date.

The Group has elected to apply the exemption under AASB 1 ‘First-time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting
Standards’ in respect of equity-settled awards and has applied AASB 2 only to equity instruments granted after 7 November 2002 but that
had not vested on or before 1 January 2005.

Services revenue from subsidiaries

D - The Company provides accounting, administrative and technical services to subsidiaries at cost. Under AASB 118 ‘Revenue’, the Company
recognises such services provided as revenue. This amount had previously been recovered against employee benefits expense in the income
statement.

Cash Flow Statements

There was no material differences between the cash flow statements presented under previous Australian GAAP and Australian equivalents
to International Financial Reporting Standards. However, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for
the current financial year.

27. SEGMENT REPORTING

Business segment
The Group operates exclusively in one segment, investment in energy related projects.
Geographic segment

The Group operates in one geographic segment, being Australia.

28. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Since the end of the financial year, the following material events have occurred:
Subsequent to the end of the financial year the economic entity completed a 286 sg km 3D seismic data acquisition over the permits WA-
314-P and WA-315-P. Interpretation of the first 845 sgq km 3D seismic survey over WA-314-P and WA-315-P has commenced, with
results expected during the 3™ quarter 2006. The 845km 2D seismic survey data is in the final stages of processing.

Century Rig 11 has been contracted to drill three wells in the Gippsland Basin in November 2006.
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Karoon Gas Australia Ltd

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2006

The Directors of the company declare that:

1. The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 22 to 43
are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 :

(a) comply with Accounting Standards and the Corporations
Regulations 2001; and

(b) give a true and fair view of the financial position as at
30 June 2006 and of the performance for the year ended on that
date of the Company and consolidated entity;
2. In the Directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe

that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board
of Directors.

Dated at Melbourne this 15th day of September 2006

Robert Hosking
Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO MEMBERS OF
KAROON GAS AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED

Scope
The financial report and directors’ responsibility

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position,
statement of financial performance, statement of cash flows,
accompanying notes to the financial statements, and the directors’
declaration for both Karoon Gas Australia Limited (the company) and
Karoon Gas Australia Limited and Controlled Entities (the consolidated
entity), for the year ended 30 June 2006. The consolidated entity
comprises both the company and the entities it controlled during that
year.

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance
with the Corporations Act 2001. This includes responsibility for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls
that are designed to prevent and detect fraud and error, and for the
accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial
report.

Audit approach

We conducted an independent audit in order to express an opinion
to the members of the company. Our audit was conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, in order to provide
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free

of material misstatement. The nature of an audit is influenced by
factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing,
the inherent limitations of internal control, and the availability of
persuasive

rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot
guarantee that all material misstatements have been detected.

\We performed procedures to assess whether in all material
respects the financial report presents fairly, in accordance with

the Corporations Act 2001, including compliance with Accounting
Standards and other mandatory financial reporting requirements in
Australia, a view which is consistent with our understanding of the
company’s and the consolidated entity’s financial position, and of their
performance as represented by the results of their operations and
cash flows.

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which
included:

e examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial report, and

e assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and
disclosures used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors.

While we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal
contrals over financial reporting when determining the nature and
extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide

assurance on internal controls.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence
requirements of Australian professional ethical pronouncements and
the Corporations Act 2001.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ENTITIES

For The Year Ended 30 June 2006

Audit opinion

In our opinion, the financial report of Karoon Gas Australia Limited
and Karoon Gas Australia Limited and Controlled Entities is in
accordance with:

(a) the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the company’s and consolidated
entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2006 and of their
performance for the year ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the
Corporations Regulations 2001 ; and

[b) other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia.
Inherent Uncertainty Regarding Continuation as a Going Concern

Without qualification to the opinion expressed above, attention is
drawn to the following matter. As indicated in Note 1(r] to the
financial report, the Directors of Karoon Gas Australia Limited are of
the opinion that the consolidated entity has the ability to farm-out its
interest in its permits and seek additional sources of capital in order
to meet future exploration expenditure commitments and working
capital requirements. If the farm-outs do not occur or additional
capital is not raised, there is uncertainty whether the company and
the consolidated entity will be able to continue as a going concern and
therefore whether it will realise its assets and extinguish its liabilities
in the normal course of business and at the amounts in the financial
report.

Mitchell Wilson & Partners
hartgred Accountants

Doug Mitchell
Partner
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

For The Year Ended 30 June 2006

The ASX’s Statement of Corporate Governance Principles establishes the framework for how the Board oversees the Company and performs
its functions on behalf of shareholders. Karoon’s objective is to achieve best practice in corporate governance and the Company’s directors

and employees are committed to achieving this objective.

Structure of the Board of Directors

The Board is elected by shareholders to represent all shareholders. It
is a director’s responsibility, in all decisions he or she is called upon to
make concerning the consolidated entity’s affairs, to conscientiously
weigh the interests of shareholders in light of the circumstances

and to consider the effects of such decisions on the interests of all
shareholders.

The Company recognises the importance of having a Board
comprising of directors with an appropriate range of background,
skills and experience to suit the Company’s current and future
strategies and requirements.

Role of the Board

The Board is to oversee and direct the management of the Company
with a view to increasing shareholder wealth by:

¢ defining and monitoring the strategic direction of the Company;

¢ defining policies and procedures to ensure the Company operates
within the legal, ethical and social requirements of its environment;

e establishing control and accountability systems within the
consolidated entity’s operations to conform to the legal
requirements and the expectations of shareholders and other
stakeholders;

¢ defining and monitoring the management of an effective risk
assessment strategy;

e securing funds to develop the Company’s assets;
e driving Company performance;

¢ from time to time, reviewing and monitoring the management and
Company performance;

e appointing and appraising the Executive Chairman and any other
executive director;

e ensuring that there are adequate plans and procedures for
succession planning; and

e reviewing and approving the remuneration of the Managing
Director and senior management.

Composition of the Board

The Board of directors is constituted by four members, with two non-
executive directors. The skills, experience and expertise relevant to
the position of each director who is in office at the date of the annual
report and their term of office are detailed in the director’s report.

The independent directors of the company are Geoff Atkins and
Stephen Power.

Under ASX Corporate Governance Best Practice Recommendation
2.1, it is recommended that a company have a majority of non-
executive directors, Karoon will add additional non-executive directors
as its operations expand and the need for a larger skills base on the
Board arises.

When determining whether a non-executive director is independent,
the director must not breach any of the following materiality
thresholds:

e less than 10% of company shares are held by the director and any
entity or individual directly or indirectly associated with the director;

¢ none of the director’s income or the income of an individual or
entity directly or indirectly associated with the director is derived
from a contract with the Company other than income derived as a
director of the Company.

The Board’s composition will be reviewed from time to time having
regard to the growth of Karoon’s business with a view to eventually
having a majority of independent directors.

Karoon Gas Australia Ltd

Under the Company’s constitution, at each Annual General Meeting
of shareholders, one third of the directors (excluding the Managing
Director) must resign, with directors resigning by rotation based on
the date of their appointment. Directors resigning by rotation may
offer themselves for re-election. This procedure ensures that no
director can serve for more than three months without being re-
elected.

No new directors were appointed in the 2006/2007 financial year.
However, the Company is in the process of preparing a Selection
and Appointment of New Directors Policy. Upon the Selection and
Appointment of Directors Policy being adopted by the Board, it will be
made available on the Company’s website at www.karoongas.com.au

Meeting schedule

The Board schedules meetings at least every two months with
additional committee meetings, if and when required, to discuss
technical and specific matters.

Relationship of Board with management

The management of the day-to-day business of the Company is
conducted by or under the supervision of the Executive Chairman and
is designated by the Board of directors, which has clearly defined the
limits of management’s responsibilities. The Board will approve the
corporate objectives that will be developed and implemented by the
Executive Chairman and management.

The Board will adopt appropriate structures and procedures to
ensure that the Board functions independently of management.

Under the ASX Corporate Governance Best Practice
Recommendations 2.2 & 2.3, the Chairman should be an
independent director. Given that the Executive Chairman is also the
founding director, Karoon’s major shareholder, and has shown good
transparency in relation to Board/management decision making,

the Board believes that the current situation is acceptable. This
recommendation will be monitored by the Audit Committee.

Performance Review

During the Reporting Period there was no formal performance
evaluation of the Board, its committees and individual directors. Due
to the nature and stage of the Company’s operations and its positive
progress, the Board decided that formal evaluation was not required.
However, the Company has prepared a draft Board and Senior
Executives Evaluation Policy. Upon the Board and Senior Executives
Policy being adopted by the Board, it will be made available on the
Company’s website at www.karoongas.com.au.

Board committees

The Board may establish appropriate committees to assist in its role
at appropriate points in the Company’s evolution.

The Board has established an Audit Committee.

The Board has yet to form a Remuneration and Nomination
Committee.

It is proposed that the Remuneration and Nomination Committees,
when formed, will be responsible for ensuring:

e remuneration is kept competitive in order to attract and
retain talented and motivated employees and directors to Karoon;

e that there is a clear relationship between performance,
responsibility and remuneration;

e a performance evaluation process is created to monitor the Board
and executives.
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

Composition of committees

A committee will be chaired by a director appointed by the Board.

It can consist of a director(s) or Company Secretary and other
members who possess skills and expertise suitable for carrying out
the functions of the committee as appointed by the Chairman of the
committee.

Audit Committee

The role of the Audit Committee is to advise on the establishment and
maintenance of a framework of internal control and the appropriate
ethical standards for the management of the consolidated entity. The
Company has formally adopted an Audit Committee Charter. A copy
of the Audit Committee Charter can be found at www.karoongas.
com.au.

The Audit Committee also gives the Board of directors additional
assurance regarding the quality and reliability of financial information
prepared for use by the Board in determining policies or for inclusion
in financial statements.

The Audit Committee presently consists of:
Mr G Atkins
Mr H Peeters
Mr R Hosking
The responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

e liaising with external auditors and ensuring that the annual and half
yearly statutory audits are conducted in an effective manner;

e reviewing internal controls and recommending improvements;

e reviewing the half year financial statements prior to lodgement
of these documents with the Australian Stock Exchange, and any
significant adjustments required as a result of the audit;

e reviewing the draft financial statements and the audit report and
making the necessary recommendations to the Board for approval of
the financial statements;

e reviewing treasury recommendations and making necessary
recommendations to the Board for approval; and

e reviewing and reporting on any special reviews deemed necessary
by the Board.

Pursuant to Recommendation 4.3 (b] of the ASX Corporate
Governance Best Practice Recommendations, Karoon proposes
appointing another non-executive director to the Audit Committee.
Currently Karoon is reviewing its policies and has an executive
director sitting on the Audit Committee.

The Committee reports to the full Board after each Committee
Meeting and relevant papers and minutes are provided to all
directors.

Audit Committee Meetings

No. of meetings NO"Of
Director e
held during year attended
Mr G Atkins 3 '
Mr H Peeters 3 3
Mr R Hosking 4 ?
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended 30 June 2006

External Auditors

Under ASX Corporate Governance Best Practice Recommendation
4.5, the Company should make information publicly available regarding
procedures for the selection and appointment of the external auditor,
and for the rotation of external audit and engagement partners. New
auditors were not appointed during the 2005/2006 financial year and
it is not currently proposed to appoint new auditors. However, the
Company has prepared a draft Selection and Appointment of External
Auditor Policy. Upon the Selection and Appointment of External
Auditor Policy being adopted by the Board, it will be made available on
the Company’s website at www.karoongas.com.au.

Internal control

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the overall internal
control framework. To assist in discharging this responsibility the
Company has an established internal framework, which can be
described as follows.

e financial reporting — there is a comprehensive budgeting system
with an annual budget approved by the directors. Monthly actual
results are reported against budget and revised forecasts for the
year. A revised budget is prepared half yearly and approved by the
directors.

e functional specialty reporting — the Company has identified a
number of key areas that are subject to regular reporting to the
Board such as treasury, legal and self insurance matters.

® investment appraisal - the Company has clearly defined guidelines
for capital expenditure. These include annual budgets and review
procedures.

e surplus funds - a policy of conservative and secure investment of
surplus funds is applied.

Pursuant to Recommendation 4.3 (b] of the ASX Corporate
Governance Best Practice Recommendations, Karoon proposes
appointing another non-executive director to the Audit Committee.
Currently Karoon is reviewing its policies and has an executive
director sitting on the Audit Committee.

Advice to Directors

Subject to the approval of the Board, an individual director may
engage an outside adviser at the expense of the Company in
appropriate circumstances.

Fair dealings and related party transactions

A director, or entities in which a director has a significant interest
and/or influence, who enters into a transaction with the Company
must make full disclosure of all material elements of the transaction
to the Chairman, or, if the director involved is the Chairman, to the
Board.

In addition, contracts with directors, or entities in which directors
have a significant interest and/or influence, must be approved by the
Audit Committee in advance of committing the Company to:

e contracts for the supply of goods and/or services which extend
beyond one year, or where the total value of goods and/or services
supplied under the contract will, in any one year, exceed $25,000;

e all agreements to lease and/or leases of property;

e all agreements for acquisition or disposal of property except by way
of public auction.

Any director who is a member of the Audit Committee and who has
a significant interest and/or influence in relation to a contract to be
approved by the Audit Committee must absent themself from the
meeting and not participate in any vote to approve such contract.
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Disclosure of information

The Company has an objective of honest and open disclosure of
information in dealing with stakeholders, subject to appropriate
commercial considerations associated with competitive and sensitive
information. Such disclosure may, in appropriate circumstances,
exceed statutory requirements.

The Company has developed a Continuous Disclosure Policy to
ensure the compliance of the Company with the various laws and
Australian Stock Exchange Limited listing rules obligations in relation
to disclosure of information to the market.

Karoon’s Continuous Disclosure Policy can be found at www.
karoongas.com.au

Policy and procedure for share trading

Directors and officers are prohibited from short-term dealing in
Karoon securities.

Directors and officers are prohibited from dealing in Karoon securities
if they are in possession of information concerning Karoon which, if
made public, a reasonable person would expect to have a material
impact on the price or value of Karoon’s securities (“price sensitive
information”).

Directors and officers are prohibited from dealing in Karoon securities
during any embargo period declared by the Chairman. Embargo
periods include the period of two weeks prior to:

e the release of Karoon’s half-yearly results and preliminary final
results to the ASX;

e Karoon's annual general meeting.

These restrictions in dealing in Karoon securities are subject to any
discretion exercised by the Chairman.

Prior to dealing in Karoon securities, directors and officers must:

e advise the Chairman or Company Secretary of the proposed dealing
to ensure that there is not any imminent ASX announcement that
contains price sensitive information; and

e confirm to the Chairman or Company Secretary that he or she
is not aware of any price sensitive information that has not been
released to the ASX.

Directors and officers must advise the Company Secretary of any de
aling in Karoon securities within 2 days of such dealing.

Karoon’s Share Trading Policy can be found at
www.karoongas.com.au.

Ethical standards, compliance with obligations and responsible decision
making

The directors, senior executives and employees are required to

act with the utmost integrity and objectivity, striving at all times to
enhance the reputation and performance of the consolidated entity.
The Company also strives to comply with legal and other obligations
to legitimate stakeholders.

The Company has developed a Code of Conduct for directors and
officers and employees of the Company. Please refer to www.
karoongas.com.au.

Environment

The Company has an environmental policy and is committed to
conducting all its activities in an environmentally responsible manner.

Karoon Gas Australia Ltd
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The role of shareholders

The Board aims to ensure that all shareholders are informed of all
major developments affecting Karoon’s state of affairs. Information is
communicated to the shareholders as follows.

e the annual report is distributed to all shareholders. The Board
ensures that the annual report includes relevant information about
the operations of the consolidated entity during the year, changes in
the state of affairs of the consolidated entity and other disclosures
required by the Corporations Act.

¢ half yearly financial statements prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Corporations Act are subject to an audit review.
The financial statements are sent to any shareholder who requests
them.

¢ proposed major changes in Karoon which may impact on share
ownership rights are submitted to a vote of shareholders.

¢ shareholder newsletters are made accessible to shareholders at
least twice per year.

¢ the Company posts all reports, Australian Stock Exchange and
media releases and copies of significant presentations on the
Company’s website — www.karoongas.com.au.

In addition, news announcements and other information are sent by
email to all persons who have requested their details be added to the
Company’s electronic mailing list. If requested, the Company, where
appropriate, will provide general information by email, facsimile or
post.

Risk assessment and management

As part of the consolidated entity’s strategy to implement an
integrated framework of control, the Board continually identifies and
monitors the key business and financial risks that could jeopardise the
consolidated entity achieving its objectives. The Board is developing
appropriate controls that would effectively manage those risks.
These include:

e identification of risks;

¢ policy to manage risk;

e monitoring compliance with the risk management policy;
e procedures to manage financial exposures; and

e commitment and expenditure levels exceeding certain levels are
submitted to the Board for approval.

Karoon is currently drafting a risk assessment policy, topics covered
will include mechanisms to identify, assess, monitor and manage risk
as well as keeping shareholders informed of changes in Karoon'’s risk
profile through the website www.karoongas.com.au

Management accountability

The Board encourages management accountability for the Company’s
financial reports by requiring the Executive Chairman to state in
writing to the Board that:

a) the Company’s financial reports present a true and fair view,

in all material respects, of the Company’s financial condition and
operational results and are in accordance with relevant accounting
standards;
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b) that the financial statements are compiled in accordance with best
practice and are properly monitored using the Audit Committee and
the external auditors to ensure a sound system of risk management
and control; and

c) the statements given above in paragraphs (a] and (b) are founded
on a sound system of risk management and internal compliance and
control which implements the policies adopted by the Board.

Risk management, internal compliance and control policies are not yet
complete therefore cannot be assessed for material efficiency and
effectiveness. Karoon will endeavour to complete and institute these
controls in order to begin monitoring efficiency and effectiveness
through the next financial year.

Role of the Company Secretary

Under the Corporate Governance principles all directors have access
to the Company Secretary and the appointment and removal of the
Company Secretary is a matter for decision by the Board as a whole.

The Company Secretary supports the effectiveness of the Board by
monitoring that Board policy and procedures are followed and co-
ordinating the completion and dispatch of Board agenda and briefing
materials.

The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board, through the
Chairperson, on all governance matters.

Annual general meeting

The Company will ensure that the Annual General Meeting (AGM] is
held in a manner that enables as many shareholders as possible to
attend and encourages effective participation by shareholders.

The Company will arrange to have its external auditor attend the
Company’s AGM and be available to answer shareholder questions
about the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report.

The Chairperson of that meeting will allow a reasonable opportunity
for members to ask questions about the Company’s performance and
operations and ask questions of the external auditor concerning the
conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report.
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Remuneration

As an overall policy, the Company will remunerate in such a way

that it motivates directors and employees to pursue the long-

term growth and success of the Company within an appropriate
control framework that demonstrates a clear relationship between
key executive performance and remuneration. The remuneration
committee will be responsible for review of all remuneration and make
recommendations to the Board.

Executive remuneration is set by the Board and may contain salary
bonuses and share options.

Non-executive directors are remunerated by way of fees in the form
of cash and superannuation contribution at marketplace levels as well
as director options.

Fees and equity based payments payable to directors are set and
may not be increased without prior approval of the shareholders at a
general meeting.

Further information on the remuneration of the Board and executives
can be found in the Remuneration Report section of the Directors
Report.
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Shareholdings as at 31 August 2006

Substantial shareholders

The number of shares held by substantial shareholders are:

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Fully paid Ordinary shares

As At 31 August 2006

Percentage of Shares Held

Ropat Nominees Pty Ltd 12,311,087 15.15
Summerlea Nominees Pty Ltd 5,434,717 6.69
Rubicon Asset Management 4,950,000 6.09
Total 22,695,804 27.93

Twenty largest shareholders

Name of holder

Number of ordinary Shares held

Percentage of Shares held

ANZ Nominees Limited 10,759,172 13.24
Westpac Custodian Nominees Limited 5,459,410 6.72
Ropat Nominees Pty Ltd 4,058,563 5.00
Summerlea Nominees Pty Ltd 2,552,705 3.14
JJ Holdings (Vic) Pty Ltd 2,250,000 2.77
National Nominees Limited 1,778,946 2.19
Echo Beach Pty Ltd 1,200,000 1.48
Pressure Drop Pty Ltd 1,125,000 1.38
Doug & Mara Spong 1,125,000 1.38
Rose Burton Pty Ltd 1,100,000 1.35
Ross Stansfield Smith 909,538 1.12
Bojan Nominees Pty Ltd 832,535 1.02
Brian Dunn Investments Pty Ltd 743,000 0.91
Alimoc Pty Ltd 575,000 0.71
Envisage International Pty Ltd 529,956 0.65
Fristino Investment Pty Ltd 509,500 0.63
Edmund & Joanne Aldridge 500,000 0.62
Delregal Pty Ltd 500,000 0.62
Kenneth Stevenson 499,989 0.62
\Wamberal Investments Pty Ltd 452,090 0.56
Total shares on issue 37,460,414 46.11
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

As At 31 August t 2006

Distribution of share and option holdings

Number of holders by size of holdings at 31 August 2006 were as follows:

Ordinary fully Options Options Options Options Options Options

paid shares expiry 30/06/07 expiry 30/06/07 expiry 31/10/07 expiry 30/09/08 expiry 30/09/08 expiry 30/08/08

exercisable exercisable @ 25 exercisable exercisable exercisable exercisable

@ 1.35 cents cents @ $1.65 @ $1.75 @ $2.00 @ $2.25
1- 1,000 123 - - - - - -
1,001- 5,000 390 - - - - - -
5,001 -10,000 301 - - - - - -
10,001-100,000 406 - - - - - _
100,001 and above 75 1 3 1 2 2 2
Total 1,295 1 3 1 2 2 2

Issued capital

(a) At 31 August 2006, the following securities in the parent entity
were on issue:

Type Security Number of Securities Number of Holders
Fully paid ordinary shares 81,241,897 2077
Options Exercisable at $0.25 by 30 June 2007 - Unquoted 1,500,000 3
Options Exercisable at $1.35 by 30 June 2007- Unquoted 500,000 1
Options Exercisable at $1.65 by 30 October 2007- Unguoted 500,000 1
Options Exercisable at $1.75 by 30 September 2008- Unquoted 1,500,000 2
Options Exercisable at $2.00 by 30 September 2008- Unquoted 1,500,000 2
Options Exercisable at $2.25 by 30 September 2008- Unquoted 1,500,000 2

(b) At 31 August 2006, 33 shareholders held less than a marketable parcel of fully paid ordinary shares
Voting rights

On a show of hands every member present in person or by proxy shall have one role and upon a poll each
share shall have one vote.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR LISTED COMPANIES

Schedule of interests

As at 28 August 2006 Interest %

Exploration Permits

PEP 162 - Gippsland Basin 100
EL 4537 - Gippsland Basin 100
WA-314-P- Browse Basin 100
WA-315-P- Browse Basin 100

The above interests are held by Karoon Gas Pty Ltd, Karoon Gas Browse Basin Pty Ltd and Karoon Gas Australia Ltd.
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Directors

Mr Robert Hosking - Executive Chairman
Mr Mark Smith — Executive Director

Mr Geoff Atkins — Non-Executive Director

Mr Stephen Power — Non-Executive Director

Company Secretary

Mr Scott Hosking

Audit Committee
Mr Robert Hosking
Mr Hector Peeters

Mr Geoff Atkins

Auditors

Mitchell Wilson & Partners
261 -271 Wattletree Road
Malvern VIC 3144

Telephone: (03] 9500 0533
Facsimile: (03] 9500 0633
Bankers

National Australia Bank Limited
271 Collins Street
Melbourne VIC 3000

Telephone: (03] 9659 7600
Facsimile: (03] 9658 7902

Karoon Gas Australia Ltd

Registered Office and Head Office

Suite 7A, 34 - 38 Lochiel Avenue
Mt Martha VIC 3934

Telephone: (03) 5974 1044
Facsimile: (03] 5974 1644
Email: rhosking@karoongas.com.au

Website: www.karoongas.com.au

Location of Share Registry

Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd
Yarra Falls

452 Johnston Street

Abbotsford VIC 3067

Telephone: (03] 9415 5000
Website: www.computershare.com

Stock Exchange

The Company is listed on the Australian Stock Exchange.

The Home Exchange is Melbourne, Victoria.

Other Information

Karoon Gas Australia Limited, incorporated and domiciled in Australia,

is a publicly listed company limited by shares.
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